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1. LYUONRBRdAzOUOAZ2Y
1.1. Designation of Goose Green Conservation Area

1.1.1. Goose Green Conservation Area vesignated byAltrincham Borough Council o4
February, 1973.The boundaries of the Conservation Area have not badmsequently
extendeduntil 2014.

1.2. Definition of a Conservation Area

1.21. ! O2yaSNBIGA2Y FNBIF A& |y |NBF G2F aLISOAL
2NJ I LILISE NI yOS 2F 6KAOK Al "DesigRdicnxakds pldceS (i 2
primarily by local planning authorities under Secté® of the Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. Local planning authorities also have a duty from time
to time to review the extent of designation and tiesignate further areas if appropriafe.

Section 71 of the Act imposes a duty on the local planning authority to formulate and
publish proposals for the preservation and enhancement of conservation areas.
Proposals should bgublicisedand incorporate pblic comment.

1.2.2.  Conservation area designation recognises the unique quality of an area as a whole. It is
not just the contribution of individual buildings and monuments, but also that of features
such as topography, layout of roads, pathways, streetifura, open spaces and hard
and soft landscaping which assist in defining the character and appearance of an area.
Consevation aeas identify the familiar and cherished local scene that creates a sense of
place, community, distinctiveness and environment.

1.2.3. The extent to which a building positively shapes the character of a conservation area
depends not just on their street elevations, but also on their integrity as historic
structures and the impact they have in three dimensions, perhaps in an interesting
roofsgape, or skyline. Back elevations can be important, as can side views from alleys and
yards.

1.3. Value of Conservation Area Appraisals

1.3.1. The National Planning Policy Framework stresses the need for local planning authorities
to set out a positive strategy for the conservation and enjoyment of the historic
environment. Local planning authorities are required to define and record the special
characteristics of heritage assets within their are@his appraisal fulfills the statutory

! Section 69 (1) (a) PlanningListed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

2 Section 69 (2) Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

® English Heritage,Understanding Place: Conservation Area Designation, Appraisal and MalagedoentEnglish
Heritage, 2011) para 2.2.21
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preservation and enhancement of any parts of their area which are contsemareasb’

Conservation areas may be affected by direct physical change or by changes in their
setting. A clear definition of those elements which contribute to the special architectural
or historic interest of a place will enable the development of a robust policy framework
for the future management of that area, against which applications can be condidere

The purpose of the Appraisal is, in accordance with the methodology recommended by
English Heritag&to define and record the special architectural and historic interest of
the Goose Green Conservation Area. This Appraisal has been used to preprafe a
Management Plan which sets out suggested actions to maintain and enhance the special
character of the area. These documents will support the active management of the
Conservation Area through the development control process, including support for

appeals.

The undertaking of an appraisal will lead to a better understanding of the development of
the conservation area, in terms of its local distinctiveness, setting and condition, which
together contribute to the place it is today.This will enable the basis for positive
management of the conservation area.

An adopted conservation area appraisal is a material consideration to appeal decisions
and also relevant to decisions made by the Secretary of State when considering urgent
works to preserve an unlisted building in a conservation ar@a. appraisal can inform 2
those considering investment in the area, help guide the form and content of new—
development and result in an educational and informative document for the local
community®

The Town and Country Planning Act (General Permitted Development) Ordera$995
amended (GPDO) sets out permitted development rights for certain minor forms of
development- i.e. development that may be legitimately undertaken without the need
for plannng permission.An appraisal can assess whether or not permitted development
rights are having an adverse impact on the special interest of a conservation area and
whether or not the use of an Article 4 direction is appropriate.

This appraisal will prasde a character assessment of the present Goose Green
Conservation Areand those areas under consideration for extensidie document will

seek to identify those factors resulting in adverse harm to the special interest of the
GonservationArea, identify whether cumulative change can be addressed through Article
4 directions and assess if statutory action is required to safeguard significant buildings at

4 Section 71(1) Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

® English Heritage,Guidance o@onservation Arépraisals(London: English Heritage,2006) para 2.8.

¢ English Heritage,Guidance o@onservation Arégpraisals(London: English Heritage,2005).

" English Heritage,Understanding Place: Conservation Area Designation, Appraisal and MaflagesoentEnglish
Heritage, 2011 para 1.7

8 English Heritage,Understanding Place: Conservationes@nation, Appraisal and Managenfeohdon: English
Heritage, 2011) para 19
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risk. A review of existing boundaridsas also beemundertaken to determine if areas
shauld be included or removed from the designatjdhis discussion is found in Section 7
and the extensions are also shown Map 15). Consequentially the document will
provide background evidence for accessing the acceptability of development proposals.

Further guidance and proposalsill be detailed in the correspondingGoose Green
Management Plan which should be considered in conjunction withAysaisal.

Scope of the Appraisal

This document is not intended to be comprehensive in its scope and content. Omission
of any specific building, structure, site, landscape, space, feature or aspect located in or
adjoining to the Goose Green Conservation Area should not be taken to inglif tloes

not hold significance and positively contribute to the character and appearance of the
designated heritage asset.

As an area evolves evidence may emerge which provides a greater understanding of a
heritage asset(s) and the contribution made the special interest of the Goose Green
Conservation Area. Such information should be considered in conjunction with the
appraisal during the course of decision making by the local planning authority.

The positive characteristics as defined by thi€eument should be the starting point for
further discussion with the local planning authority where alterations are being
considered to or will affect a heritage asset(s). Each site will be judged on its own metits
and there are bound to be variatioms the quality of individual developments. It will not
be acceptable merely to emulate the least successful or highest density of these or to use
such sites as an excuse for making matters worse. Instead regard should be paid to those
elements which makéhe Goose Green Conservation Area significhittimately special
attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving and enhancing the character or
appearance of the Conservation Afea

This conservation area appraisal has been produced by thendBofollowing the
submission of an initial draft by Kathryn Sather Associathe draft was subject to public
consultation from February 2014 to fMartch 2014.

® Section 71) Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.
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Planning Policy Context

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and the National
Planning Policy Framewo(kIPPFprovide the legislative and national policy framework
for Conservation Area appraisals and management plans.

The NPPF (paragraph 126) stalés

G[ 201t LI FyyAy3 | dzi K2 Ndcal Plarda paskig dafaiedgpratiell 2 dz
conservation and enjoyment of the higsic environment, includindperitage assets most at

risk through neglect, decay or other threata doing sothey shouldrecognse that heritage

assets are an irreplaceable resoarandconserve them in a manner appropriate to their
significance. In developing th&rategy, local planning authorities should take into account

the desirability of sustaining and enhancirtgetsignificance of heritage assets and putting
them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;

the wider social, cultural, economic amhvironmental benefits that conservation of the
historic environment can bring;

the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character aﬂd
distinctiveness; B

and opportunities to draw on the contribution made by the historic environment to the
OKF NI} OGSNJ 2F | LX I OS¢

NPPF (Annex 2) defines aritageassetr 8 > d! o0dzAf RAYy3IS Y2y dzySy
landscape identified as having a degree of significance meriting consideration in planning
decisions, because of its heritage interest. Heritage asset includes designated heritage
assets and nowlesignated heritage assets identified by the local planning authority
OAY Ot dzZRAY3 201t fAaGAYIVE D ¢ KS 3dzARI yOS
that is classed asi ! 22NIR I SNAGEF3IS {AGSsET { OKSRdz
Protected Weck Site, Registered Park or Garden, Registered Battlefield or Conservation
Area designated as such under the relevant legislaémA non-designatedHeritage

Asset is a building, monument, site, place, area or landscape identified as having a degree
of significance that is not protected under legislative framework.

¢CKAAd R20dzySyid Ydzad o6S O2yaARSNBR | f2y3:
developnent and the use of land as set out in the Trafford Core Strategy formally
adopted on 2%h January 2012. Of particular relevance is Policy Hi&toric Environment

10 Department of Communities and Local GovernmentNational Planning Policy Framewdixepartment of
Communities and Local Government,2012) para 126.
11 Department of Communities and Local GovernmentNational Planning Policy Framewdiepartment of
Communities and Local Government,2012) Annex 2.

2: Planning Policy Context & Guidar
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relating to designated andon-designated heritage assets; Policy RBpen Space Sport
and Recreation, Policy R6Culture and Tourism, Policy EDesign and Policy WPown
Centres and Retail.

A number of policies and proposals of the Revised Unitary Development Plan adopted in
Hnnc FNB OdzZNNByGfeée aal gSReé > BEBNZ2KConseivationb + H v
Area Designation, until they are replaced by the Land Allocations Development Plan
Document.

Conservation Area Policy Guidance

This appraisal was undertaken consulting guidance provided by English Heritage in the
subsequent documents;

Measuring and Assessing Change in Conservation Areas 2005

Guidance on Conservation Area Appraisals 2006

Guidance on the Management of Conservatreas 2006

Understanding Place: An Introduction 2010

Understanding Place: Historic Area Assessments in a Planning and

Development Context 2010

1 Understanding Place: Historic Area Assessments: Principles and Practice 2010;
Understanding Place: Conservat Area Designation, Appraisal and
Management 2011

1 Understanding Place: Character and Context in Local Planning 2011

1 Streets for All 5

1 Conservation Principles Policies and Guidance

= =4 -4 -4 -9

The English Heritage documefonservation Principlespublished in 2008, provides
policies and guidance for identifying significance. Four heritage values are assigned
through which a site or place can be interpreted; evidential, historical, communal and
aesthetic.

Further guidance has been issued by BhglHeritage in the suite of documents
Understanding Placeith a view to setting out approaches to undertake assessments of
historic areas allowing a greater understanding of the character of a place and its capacity
for change. In particular Understandi Place Historic Area Assessments: Principles and

t NI OGAOS aiaNBaasSa GKS AYLRNIFYyOS Ay WARS)
and what these add to our lives, is central to our engagement with our history and
Odzft G dzNBQ® | a rbiEhdiry RiBogHsBHRC Aleg AssesSiRedits: Principles and

t N} O0AO0SsE t26SN) 2F tfl OS LlzoftAaKSR o0& 9Yy:
f 20t | yR W2dWRa nfightNie @rméd$hihuildings &nd spaces in between
WY2ydzYSoitKesEQ ljdzl t AGe 2F LIS2L)X SQa tA@®Sa | yR
ARSyGAleQo

In addition, consultation of the Historic Environment Record for Altrincham maintained
by the Greater Manchester Archaeological Advisory Service (GMAAS) has been
undertaken and also an assessment of the Trafford Urban Historic Landscape
Characterisation Project 2008.

2: Planning Policy Context & Guidar
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The proposals set out by this appraisaére subject toa 6 weekpublic consultation and
submitted for consideration at a public meeting in the area to which they relatke
local planning authority hdiregard to any views concerning the proposals expressed by
persons attending the meetingndduring the period of ensultation.

Control Measures Brought about by Designation

In determining applications for development in conservation areas, local planning
authorities must pay special attenticlh i 2 G KS RS&AANI 0Af AlEe 27F L
character ork LILIS | NI y OS 2 Thisirequirémerit, M&detéout in legislation, is

also reflected in national and local policy.

In order to protect and enhance conservation areas any changes that take place must do
SO in a way that encourages positive conseisatand management. Statutory control
measures are designed to prevent development that may have a negative or cumulative
effect on the character and appearance of an area and include the following;

w Planning Permission is usually required to tgtalt substantially demolish buildings
or structures including walls, gate piers, gates, chimneys, fence or railings within a
conservation area.

w KS¢SEGSyid 2F WLSNXYAGGSRQ RSOSt2LIVSya A
properties restrictingsuch things as cladding, extensions to the side of the original™
dwelling or the installation of satellite dishes. Further control measures such as
Article 4 directions may be placed upon an area. These may be served to further
restrict permitted developmenrights for example elements or alterations such as
windows, doors, chimneys, boundary walls and gate posts and restrict certain types
of extensions).

w Trees with a stem diameter of 75mm or greater, measured at 1.5 metres from soil
level, enjoy a reasure of protection if they stand in a designated conservation area.
The Council requires six weeks written notice of any proposed felling or pruning of
such trees, other than the removal of dead wood and the felling of dead and/or
dangerous trees, whicdo not require notification. In the case of the removal of
dzy RSaANI 6fS GNBSa (2 Fff2g &dzLISNRA 2 NJ G NI
the requirement is relaxed to allow the removal of trees of stem diameter up to
100mm to be removed without givg the Council prior notice.

w hould the notified tree work be unacceptable to the Council, the latter will make a
Tree Preservation Order during the six week notification period, thus ensuring
continuity of protection. Local Authorities cannot irisigopon a replacement for a
tree lawfully felled within a conservation area, unless the tree is also protected by a
Tree Preservation Order.

2Section 72 (1) Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

2: Planning Policy Context & Guidar
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1 Certain categories of advertisement which have deemed consent under the
Advertisement Regulations are restrictedaireas of special control

2: Planning Policy Context & Guidar
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3.1.1. The special interest of the Goose Green Conservation Area derives from the following
elements:

1 Goose Green is an historic hamlet with its own identity, shown in the 1799 Stamford
Estate Map; historicallit was possibly associated with the pen where the geese were
kept prior to sale at market. It retains both the feeling edfclosure and that of an
artisan locality and its structures document the development of Altrincham

1 Properties located within and adjacettt GooseGreenare modest in scalarchitectural
detail and retain the planform historic workshops These details give the ar@ahigh
level of historic character;

1 Thepalette of building materials and local details repeated throughout the Conservation
Area gives the area a sense of visual harmony;

1 The feeling of enclosure provided by the buildings surrounding Goose Goa¢nasts to
the hectic environment of Stamford New Roa@dnd Railway Street to the north and
north west respectively. This differentiates between thedifferent phases of
lf ONRAYOKI YQAa RS@St2LIYSyd

1 The lane providing accessof Railway Streetocated to the north west of the
Conservation Areais an historicroute from the Old Market Place in Higher Town,
through Lower Towr{George Streetand the hamlet of Goose Gredsadingon to Hale
Moss, an area of both market gardens and common land;

1 TheConservatiomArea represents a good example of the use of appropriate shop front
design.

3: Summary of Special Intere
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Location and Setting

The main section of the appraisal comprises a detailed analysis of the special interest of
the Goose GreerConservation Area with regard to its location and setting, historic
development and archaeology, architectural quality and built form, oppace, p&ks
andgardensand trees

Location and Setting of Goose Green Conservation Area

Goose Green Conservation Area is situated in Altrincham, to the soutbg#se town
centre. Altrincham is located approximately 8 miles (12.9 km) southwelstapichester

city centre 3 miles (4.8 km) soutbouthwest of Sde and 10 miles (16 km) east of
Warrington Altrinchamis a major sub regional centre serving the south Manchester and
north east Cheshire araa located in the south of the borougii Trafford, one of the ten
local authorities forming the Greatéd/lanchester region.

Altrincham is the principal focus for high quality comparison retail supported by a range
of service, leisure, tourism, office and other town cenrtype uses includingesidential.

The town provides supplies and services for the surrounding settlements of Hale, Hale
Barns, Bowdon, Oldfield Brow, Dunham Massey, Broadheath and Timperley. It also serves
as a commuter settlement to nearby Manchester connected by an integrpteaic
transport system including the Metrolink tram service

Altrincham is situated on a ridge surrounded by the Cheshire Plain to the south and the
lowland of the Mersey valley to the north. The ridge rises to a height of 67 metres above
sea level andruns from Dunham Park to the south west of Altrincham through to
Bowdon, Hale and beyond in the southeast. The Old Market Place is situated on the
northward facing, shallow slope of the ridge; the somewhat steeper, southward facing
side of the ridgein Bowdon overlooks the Bollinaltey*®. In the town centre, the ridge

also falls away to the east towards Hale Mddale Moss was historically the source of
springs and associated with agriculture. In comparison Broadheath lies at about 25
metres, Churclstreet climbs to the Old Market Place sited approximately 45 metres and
Dunham Road (A56) crosses the River Bollin at 23 metres above sé4 level

The geology of the area consists of the Permian and Triassic sandstones and mudstones
of the north Cheshire &in. Surface exposures of these rocks are mainly limited to river
valleys due to great thickness of the overlying Quaternary depbsifEhe ridge upon

which Altrincham is sited in part reflects the solid rock structure which under lies it but is
obscuredby the significant Quaternary deposits. These deposits are largely responsible

13 Don Bayliss et al.,Altrincham in1841: A Cheshire Market Town in Victorian Tirg&lsrincham: History Society,

1994)4.

4 Don Bayliss et al.,Altrincham in1841: A Cheshire Market Town in Victorian Tirg&lsrincham: History Society,

1994)5.

15 English Heritage, Strategic Stone Studih Building Stone Atlas of Greater Manchester, Introdytimadon: English
Heritage, 2011)

6: Assessment of Conditio
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for the minor landforms and soils of the area (glacially deposited sands with occasional
clay lense¥), thus the farming potentidi’ The HelsbySandstone Formation (formerly

the Lower Keuper Sandstone) appears on the surface at Timperley where it was quarried
prior to 1900. It is this stone which was probably used for stone plinths for tiithered

and brick houses in the locality, as well asthe striking boundary walls within the
+AOUZ2NRALY YR 9RgI NRAI y*® ®@Bdilding SténezAtideNd a Q
Greater Manchester describes this rock type as harder than the others in the Permian
Triassic succession, due to the localised @nes of a silica cement matrix, hence it is a
more durable building materiallt is often red or pink from the coating of iron oxide over
0KS alyR 3INIAya FtyR 2FGSy O2yidlAya Ylye
indicative of an aeolian origiwithin a desert environmentlt contains white or purplish
quartz pebbles up to 20mm across; and pebbles of red silt and red clay, which when
weathered out leave ovoid cavitiéd

Towards the end of the nineteenth century and early twentieth centurydaounts of
building stone was imported particularly for use in public and municipal buildings. The
red Runcorn Sandstone (Triassic, Sherwood Sandstone group) was used profusely,
shipped in great volumes via the Bridgewater and Manchester Ship Canalsedhe
sandstone is evident at the Church of St Mary the Virgin, Bowdon and also at the Old
Bank, Old Market Place. More commonly sandstone was used in small amounts for
architectural detailing and buff varieties can be found in the Conservation Area often
used for cills andoping stones tdoundary wall&’.

Another commonplace rock type to be imported and one used in the Conservation Angan
was the metamorphic blugrey Welsh Slate (Ordovician), which is still ubiquitous asa——
roof cladding in the vast swatkeof terraced housing which formed the iconic industrial
G2eyaol LJSa 2F al yOKSAGSNRa alraSttAdS G2y
Cornish Delabole Slate (Devonian), have also been utilised occasionally for7oofing

The Goose Green Conservation Area is one of five conservation areas either wholly or
partly sited within the Altrincham town centre boundary.

The Conservation Aegelies to the southeast of the towrentre and is bordered by the
Stamford New Road Consation Area to the northwest Goose Green is a small
Conservation Area, triangular in shape formed by two rows of shops and Goose Green
Lane to the south. The Conservation Area is bounded by the rear of properties on
Grafton Street to the north and Stamfi New Road to the west; it incorporates part of
Back Grafton StreeDenmark Street is located further to the east, separated from the
GonservationArea by the former railway bridge.

16 Michael Nevell, Archaeology North West Vol 5 (Issue 15 for 2000).
" Don Bayliss et al.,Altrincham in1841: A Cheshire Market Town in Victorian Tirgerincham: History Society, 1994)5.
18 English Heritage, Strategic Stone Studhj Building Stone Atlas of Greater Manchester, Introdyttimalon: English Heritage,

2011) 12

¥ English Heritage, Strategic Stone Studi Building Stone Atlas of Greater Manchester, Introdyttimaon: English Heritage,

2011) 12

2 English Heritage, Strategic Stone Stud§ A Building Stone Atlas of Greater Manchester(London: English Heritage2011) 13

2 English Heritage, Strategic Stone Stud§ A Building Stone Atlas of Greater Manchester. (London: English Heritagg011) 12
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The Conservation Area is topographically at a lower level than @setarthe west and

from both the east end of thelesignationand from the railway bridge just outside the
Conservation Areghere is a view of thairban landscape rising to the northwest. The
backdrop to the Conservation Area is formed by the rear of the properties along
Stamford New Road and Back Grafton Street. They do not dominate the character of the
area, but they are visible. Th@&raftons tower block on Stamford New Roadow
Travelodgeis clearlyvisiblefrom the Conservation Arei@ the northwest and is visually
intrusivebuilding.

11
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Goose Green and Adjacent Conservation Areas

et Pla A
George Street CA

- Goose Green CA

Map 1 : Goose Green Conservation Area in relation to nearby existing conservation areas

Stamford New Road CA
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GeneralDescription, Character and Plan Form

4.1.11. The Conservationrla is derived from its early identity as a small hamlet between the
g2N] SNEQ K2 dza A (Gaorgé StredtpadsHalRMas® which evolved into a
small area of workshops and dwellings. The €oragion Area is accessed from the
southeast via a former railway bridge leading from Denmark Street and from the
southwest via an historic lane leading from Railway Street. Access from the north is
granted via Back Grafton Street (see MBp The charater of the Conservation Area is
one of a quietsquare which is considerably different to the busy linear streets of shops
to the west and north.

4.1.12. Goose Green comprisé&o rows of commercial properties that meet at a point to the
north to form the triargular shape of the Conservation Area. The buildings contain a
mixture of shops, restaurants, cafes and a beauticians. pitygerties arepredominantly
Georgian and Victorianonvertedterraced dwellings exhibiting a vernaculaharacter
The buildings are constructddom brick over two or three storeyswith timber framed
sashor casement windowstimber doors and door surrounds argue slate roofs.
Repeated details such as the usetrafditional blue slatefor roofs, brick chimneysand
timber doors and stone number plaques give the area a sense of visual harmony.

4.1.13. Numbers 36 Goose Green arf®rmed froma two storey brick terrace of Flemish bond.
The roof is pitchedblue slate with gables to the ends of the structure. The rioé to
numbers 5 raises half a storey above that of numbers 3, 4 and 6. The roofs ke of
slate with brick chimneys (thought to beonstructed fromCheshire commons), the 13
windows and doors to numbers®8arepaintedtimber. The windows to numberséhd 6 ———
are also timber but the doors appear to have been replaced more recesylgcedwith
UPVC doors.

4.1.14. The buildings do not have many decorative elements, but all openings are surmounted
by a brick soldier archAt ground floor level numbers 3 haspaneled timber door and
single pane window with stone sill. There are awnings over the door and window.
Number 4 also has a timber dqdout with single upper panand single pane window
with stone sill. There is an awning over the windowt ground floor level numbers 5 and
6 each have a UPVC paneled door atdPVC single pane window that are theme size
as numbers 3 and 4.The scale and design of the windowsnambers 5 and 6 are
appropriate for the Conservation Area, but the use afdarn materials makes the new
additionsstand out and detract from the historic character of theilding

4.1.15. Numbers 7 and 8 are again a two storey bqickperty constructed fronmFlemish bond
adjoining numbers & to form a terrace, although they were ittuat a slightly later date
between 1835 and 1852They were originally recessed slightly from numbeés But a
smallentranceextensiondating to the mid to late 20th centurlas been added to the
south corner. At ground floor levelhis contains tk doorway, which is of timber, with a
small awning above and window to first floevel There are twptwo storey, 20th
century, metal framed glazedays enclosinghe windows of thehistoric buildingat
ground and first floor levels The roof is oblue slatewith stone ridge tiles and brick
chimney. Number 8 is currently vacant.
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4.1.17.

4.1.18.

4.1.19.

4.1.20.
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Number 8a is a three storey bribkiilding constructedrom headerbond witha stretcher
course adjoining numbers 9 and 10. Tgrsperty isadjoined to 9 and 10, as ifwhted by

the stretcher course that extends across all thesidresses The third storey may be a
later addition. There have been alteratiento the doorways and to the windows,
including blocking up window openingsheTtwo storeymetal framed bayis alate 20th
centuryaddition. At ground floor level 8a has a pair of timber doors with glass paneling
to the upper sections. To the east of the doorway is a large single sfame window.
There is21st century signageabove the doorway and the large shop windowo the
west of 8aare tall, black cast iron railingsoviding access to the rear of the Faulkners
Arms,public housesituated on Stamford New Road.

Numbers 9 and 10 date to the end of the 19th century ane a three storey terraced

brick building constructed fronmeader bond with stretcher course, and terracotta string
course that extends over the doorways as a hood maualdground floor level There are

large multi light timber windows to the ground @io and timber sashes to the first floor.

The doorway openings have soldier arches and segmental arched fan lights. There has
been a dormer extension and there is now a mphline window stretching across the
expang of the roof. The roof is diflue slae with a brick chimney to the east end. To the

rear of number 10 is number 10a,naid to late 20th centurytwo storey brick structure

with pitched roof and classical detsisuch as soldier arches to windows and an arched
door opening.

Numbers 1113 dak to the end of the 19th century. They is a two storey terraced brickq
building constructedfrom header bond with stretcher course, and terracotta string
course extends over the doorways as a hood matldjround floor level Contrasting
brick is used tahe openings and cornexs the property. The roof ipitched in formclad
with blue slatewith late 20th centuryéarly 21st century rooflights inserted at number
12. There are also brick chimneys with chimney pots that appear to be rendered in a
cementitious material. The windows to the first and ground floor are timber, multi pane
of various configurations. The doors are timber with segmental arched fan lights. There
is currently a modern awning over numbers 11 and 12. To the rear of nunikerlla, a

mid to late 20th centurybrick extension of two storeys with soldier arches to the
windows and doorway.

Numbers 15 to 2@re alate 20th centurybrick developmentver three storeys. The
buildinghas commercial properties to the ground floor and offices above. The scale and
massingof the developmenis inappropriate for the character of the area. The windows
are a combination of two storey bays with pitched rood that interrupt the roof line,
modern mullion and transom windows, casement windows and large pane shop fronts to
the ground floor. The glazing bars are very prominent and not in keepingrathional
timber windows on the west and east side of Goose Gre&here are mock Victorian
lamps attached to the fagade.

The streetscape is of flagged stone paving with areas of brick paving and areas of cobbles.

The street furniture consists of red iron fingerpost signage, black iron bollards and the
lighting is Victorian style street lantesn There is a raised brick planter to the front of
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numbers 1113 and a free standing Victorian water pump between numbers 8 and 9. In
the centre of the former greenthere is a bronze statue on a brick plinth with an
interpretation plague underneath.

Historic Development of Altrincham & Goose Green

Roman and Angl&saxon Period

4.2.1.

4.2.2.

4.2.3.

The Roman Road known as Watling Street is thought to have run almost the length of
England, from the southeast to Wroxeter (Viroconium) in Shropshire, with one section
goy3d 6Sad (2 1 2f@KSIFIR FYR Fy2GKSNJ 32Ay3 y?2
this latter section (from Chester to Manchester) which is believed to broadly follow the
line of the A556A56, traversing the area to the west of whaas to become Altncham

town centré® Its straight route can be traced from Dunham Road, across the
archaeological excavations undertaken on the North Cestrian School playing fields on
Oldfield Road and in line with Davenport Road, before rejoining the A56. No Roman
remairs have been found in the Conservation Area. However, a characteristic of land use
from the Roman period was the laying out of roads, tracks and field boundaries at right
angles and parallel to the Roman road, creating a grid system of squdse fdan
farming and development which is probably reflected in subsequent Adgkon field
boundarie$’.

After the Romans left in AD 410 the native Britons (probably Celts) may have provided a
sparse population and the area may have been largelyhabited and uncultivated. 15
Evidence for Angi®axon settlement in the area is derived from place names, in the
F6aASyO0S 2F R20dzyYSyidlFNE 2NJ I NOKI S2f 23A Ol f
{FTE2Y 62NR T2N K2YS&dSI Ran AnydSaxant gfolipapdssibly R Y
led by an Angld | E2y OKASTSE | f RKSNBSZ LINRIbik aloé ON
possible that settlement here may have been preceded by settlement on the summit of
GKS NAR3ISS a GKS WYRdzy Q rFeartinBaxonigrd férdayviéd Y |
hill, and also because the curved form of the churchyard was often associated with the
earliest which were circular or oval in shape.

Although Altrincham is not mentioned in the Domesday Book, the area would have lain
within the Bucklow Hundred, the contemporary administrative division. This suggests
that the population was minimal at this time. The vill of Dunham which is mentioned in
52YSaRlIe a W52ySKIQ Aa ftA1Ste G2 KI @S KI
B24oR2Y S AYyOfdzZRAYy3a GKS OKdzZNOK 6W. 23SR2ySQ0U
YSYyiGA2ySR: |ff KStR o6& !''fFgFNR o6IFfaz2 &Ll
extrapolate that in the Angk&axon period Altrincham had a population of not morentha
30-40”°and that it lay within the manor of Dunham.

Medieval Altrincham

22

Don Bayliss. (ed.) Altrincham : A History, (Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 9

2 Don Bayliss. (edAltrincham ‘A History (Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 9
?*J.DodgsonThe Place Names of Cheshire, paiiCambridge: English Place Name Society, 1970).
% Don Bayliss. (edAltrincham : A History(Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 10.
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4.2.6.

4.2.7.
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¢tKS b2NXYIya RAR y20 NBIFOK [/ KSAKANB dzyGaAft
b2NIKEZ + @GA2fSydG OF YLI ATy (G2 G 1 Sax@2 y i NJ
flYR26YSNE® 2AfEALY GKS [/ 2yI1jdzZSNRBN ONBI &S
Chester in this year and he in turn gave a large estate in the Altrincham area to Hamo de
Masci, creating him a Baron. The name Dunham Massey, which was the administrative
centre of the estate, is clearly derived from his nathe.

In the subsequent tw centuries the town grew in terms of both population and trade.

This was encouraged by the introduction of a money economy and the trade resulting
from being located in part of the hinterland for the Welsh campaigns of the late 13th
century. In 1290 thedwn was granted a Borough Charter. It is possible that this was a
YSF&d2NE AYyAGALFIGSR o0& RS ala0OAiQa RSaOSYyRSy
associated taxes, rents and other monopolies but it constituted a-skemge in trade
conditions and preperity. The Royal Charter, granted to Hamo by King Edward | on 10th
July 1290, allowed for a weekly market on Tuesdays and a-ttageannual fair on the

Feast of the Assumption on August 15th. There was no market building, but the market
place was probdly marked by a market cross.

A second Charter was created at the same time by Hamo, which is referred to as the
.2NRdzAK / KFNGISNE LINPGARSR F2NJ I WL Ly 27
the social composition of its population and th&ray of life. The Charter allowed for the
institution of the Court Leet with associated officials, the forerunner of local government,
and a seHregulating town community of tradesmen, called burgesses (regulated througlg

a Guild) who had a steady residenon plots of land within the town known as burgages,——
for which they paid rent. Altrincham appears to have been the only new settlement type
established during the medieval period in the area, contrasting with the dispersed
settlement pattern of northerrCheshiré’.

The medieval town plan was characterised by the rectangular plots, laid out
perpendicular to the road. Representing the earliest form of land ownership, these were
two perches wide and five long (approx. 48 x 120 feet), together with a stfgrmoiand,

a Cheshire acre in size, for which an annual rent of twelve pence was payable. Dwellings,
often two or three storeys in height, were erected at the street end and probably
comprised a farmstead, workshop or shop on the ground floor with Iliving
accommodation above. The farmland would have been in the form of rectangular strips
without boundaries within a larger field, such as Town Field. Such burgesses were also
part-time farmers and craftspeople and it is notable that the Charter did not cortfien
market® meaningd KS | | Y2 O2dzZ R NBGFAY Fff (G§KS AyC
location in Altrincham rather than Dunham suggests that the transport connections for
Altrincham were superior; the detour from the route east of the Roman Road may
already have been introduced.

?® Don Bayliss. (edAltrincham : A History(Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 12.
27 Michael Nevell, Altrincham North West Vol. 5 (Issue 15 for 20@0),
% Don Bayliss (ed.),Altrincham: A History(Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 16
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4.2.8. Data from a rent roll of 1348/9 lists 120 burgages (similar size to Macclesfield and larger
than Congleton (80) and Knutsford (30). If each contained a few inhabitants, the
population could have been 56800; however this wathe period of the Black Death and
the some Burgesses held several egctine roll contained only 45 names. New towns
were generally laid out in a grid form with a market place at the centre, and along the
major thoroughfare. In the case of Altrincham, tbargages probably extended either
side of what is now Church Street, and south of the Market Place. The curved roads
(Church Street, High Bank and Albert Place) north and west of the market place probably
pre-dated the new town; the parallel roads laid capproximately on the present line of
Market Street and George Street were intersected by croesmbers approximating to
Regent Road, Shaws Road and High Street. The Market Place was also the intersection of
theeasts Sa 0 NRBIFR FTNRBY (uaam olStN&piDGast©and the nbrth | G
south road from Manchester to Chester

4.29. In 1319 Edward Il changed the terms of the original charter so that the annual fair was
held for the three days around the Feast of St. Jame624 July. A second annuairf
held from 1012th November dates from about this time. The 1348/9 document refers to
the office of Mayor, chosen from the Burgesses by election.

4.2.10. During the 14th century outbreaks of the bubonic plague resulted in a declining
population. In 134819 the most severe of these, the Black Death, affected the area and
the population is thought to have been reduced from its peak of about 650 people in
1300, down to two thirds or le$s It is likely that some of the burgage plots were
abandoned or combined witothers at this time. 17

4.2.11. There remains a lack of archaeological investigation into Altrincham as a medieval. town
In the early 1980s a number of excavations were undertaken which produced very little
evidence other than medieval pottery, a late medievalrcalrying kiln and a post
medieval well in Victoria Street. Nevertheless, watching briefs in the 1990s demonstrated
the archaeological potential of the medieval borough with post medieval pits along the
southern side of Dunham Road and the potential foriédi remains behind buildings to
the east of Church Street. Such investigations were the result of rescue archaeology
rather than detailed studies into the medieval core of the town, therefore more
substantial below ground remains may eXist

4212, 'G a2yYS LRAYOG | RAaGAYyOUA2Y BAGK
¢t26yQ O00GKS OABAO OSYUNB | NBF |
professional people lived or hal KSANJ 6dzaAySaasSa |yR GKS
artisans and poorer people lived and worked the area around what is today known as
George Street, Shaws Road and Victoria Street. It is believed that at least part of Railway
Street existed in the medievakpod, as the southern extent of Lower Town, but the area
of Stamford New Road was fields, with Hale Moss lower still and further east.

2 Don Bayliss (ed.), Altrincham: A History. (Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 18.
% Don Bayliss (ed.), Altrincham: A History. (Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 27
* Michael Nevell, Archaeology North West Vol 5 (Issue 15 for 2000) 18.

*2Don Bayliss (ed.), Altrincham: A History. (Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 18.
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4.2.13. By the 1500s the population had probably still not recovered to itsBlaek Death size
and prosperity. LelandreférR G2 A G Fa F GLR2NBE (GKAYy3A gGAdl
houses were in poor repair but it had retained the local government féfn#s visitor in
MCHM RSAONAOGSR Al a KFE@GAy3 WI FAYS tAGOT
following the Wa of the Roses is likely to have led to greater prosperity interrupted again
by the Civil war in the middle of the ttvcentury. This did not affect Altrincham, with the
exception of Prince Rupert of the Rhine moving his army from Shrewsbury to York,
stopping somewhere around the Downs.

4.2.14. The title of Lord of the Manor had passed to the Booth family from thin T&ntury.
They had been heavily involved in the Civil War, leaving the estate in a poor and
impoverished condition. After the Glorious Revatatof 1688, William Booth was made
Earl of Warrington in recognition of his support for William of Orange. His son eschewed
politics and focussed on rebuilding the estate and its management. The rebuilding of
DunhamHall andancillary buildings took pt& was completed by 1720 and the wall to
the park by 1740; this would have generated grade and labour for the area but also
required good management of the estate to cover the costs.

4.2.15. d0SNDa wmMcTto 02271 |062dzi [/ KSa&fisMkall NBT

as Ay G286y 6AGK GKs LISN¥AdaAzy 27

OSHHINﬁQZ GKAOK Yle& KIFIgS 06SSy GKS Saidlds

number of men seeking work. Nevertheless he had been on the opposingfslue Civil

War to the Booths so his account may not be entirely impartial. Shortly after this the

male Booth line died out and the estate passed by marriage to the Grey family, Earlggf

Stamford, who were to become important patrons and landownersloindham. —
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4.2.16. Dairy farming was expanding at this period, recognised in the construction of a butter
market in the marketplace, with a courthouse on the upper floor, built by Lord Delamer
in 1684. This represents both a renewed focus on the civic corkrisficham as well as a
supplement to the growth of flax and the production of linen and woollen cloth in
addition to other agricultural products. The growing importance of the dairy industry is
reflected in the establishment of a third fair for cattle ssigranted in 1734.

4.2.17. A further important 18th century development was the construction of the Bridgewater
canal in 1765 from Worsley and Manchester through Broadheath and onto Runcorn by
MTTc® LO 61a&a akKz2g¢éy Ay . dzNR ) drsallowed fort  al
commuting from Altrincham to Manchester by packet boat, by then the centre of the
flourishing cotton industry. On occasion people used the canal packets for day trips to
visit Dunham Park. It also improved transport to Manchester for the daidyagricultural
goods from the market gardens and farms in the Altrincham area, increasing prosperity.
Night soil was brought from Manchester to fertilise the market gardens. The ease of
access and reduction in price of coal due to the Canal, helpeal iadustry. The
importing of building materials from further afield such as slate, led to greater variety in
building styles. The focus for the canal transport and associated buildings was
Broadheath (including the Old Packet House pub). This innovalsonpaoved a spur to

%3 Don Bayliss. (ed Altrincham: A History(Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 33.
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the development of the roads. The main one to Chester had already been turnpiked in
1752, with the northern section to Manchester completed by 1765. A stageh and
mail coach service between Manchester, Knutsford and Chester waduced”.
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Map 2: AItrlncham in 17724 (Peter Burdetthttp://www.cheshirehistory.org. uk/archlve/

4.2.18Towndirectories give a picture of the activities practiced in Altrincham at 19
time (recognising that these record only the more affluent and commerc
oriented occupants). The 1782 directory lists thisiy people and suggests tt
existence of establised shops and businesses, in addition to the market. B
the largest proportion (13) was engaged in trade, but Altrincham also hi
cabinet maker, a clockmaker, two attorneys, a barber and an apothe
suggesting prosperity, along with three innkeegpethe Unicorn Inn and the Whit
Hart Inn mentioned by name. The textile trade is reflected with the presenc
GKNBES WigAmupPd RANBSOI2NE NBTFSNE
O2yaARSNIotS YIydzZF Oi2NE AYy GKS g¢z
WLI I A y*® Th&d viad afsa ®fulling mill on Grosvenor Road. Most of the
relied on water power from The Fleanvhich drained from Hale Moss across t
north of Altrincham and ending up powering the corn mill at Dunham Masse
was a time of rapid population growth in the town, from 1,029 in 1772 to 1,6¢
1807".

4.2.19In the mid to late 18th century, the introductia of the Bridgewater Can:
sparked a phase of #euilding and new building. Many medieval properties in f

34 Don Bayliss et al., Altrincham in 18418 A Cheshire Market Town in Victorian Times. @Altrincham: Altrincham History

Society, 1994)52.

®Brosterds Chester Guide 1782, Altrincham Section, coll ated
* W. Cowdroy, Directory and Guide for the City and County of Chester, with a concise history: Altrincham sectig 1789,

collated by Trafford Local Studies Centre.

%" Don Bayliss et al., Altrincham in 18418 A Cheshire Market Town in Victorian Times. (Altrincham: Altrincham History

Society, 1994) 52.
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town centre were replaced by brick buildings or else their existing timber fr
structures were given a new shell and a Georgian appearance.r§hehfurch to
0S o0dAfld GAGKAY !'fONAYOKIY 06KAOK |
the Wesleyan Chapel at Chapel Walk (Regent Road) in 1788. John Wesl
visited Altrincham in 1738 and preached in the open air on Oldfield B
preaching &the new chapel on 5th April 1790. In 1799, marking the grov
prosperity and population of Altrincham, the chapel of St George to the northy
of the Old Market Place was consecrated as a chapel of tsaBewdonParish
Church. The first incumbent, Oald Leicester, was the son of a local grocer
1783 he had started the first Sunday School in the County, first in Ashley
GKSY |4 KAa K2YS WeKS t2LIXFNERQ 2y |
DS2NHEHSQ& / KdzZNOK® ¢ K $her Séhdaly Schdolyia a Bol:
adjacent to what is now New Street. These complement the school founde
Thomas Walton in 1759 in Oldfield House.

4.2.20Theplan showing the property of the Earl of Stamford of 1790 (amended
1799) in John Rylandsbraryprovides an overview of the state of Altrincham
the middle of the Georgian period and allows some of the buildings still exi
today to be identified. The census of 1801 established the pattern of Altrinc
society and housing. There were 340 houséh & population of 1,692. The uppe¢
and middle classes in larger houses were still clustered in Higher Town, the
around the OId Market Place, Church Street and Market Street. The p
families and those of modest means lived in Lower Town in ddragsing around
George Street, Goose Green and the bottom of the D&wra addition to
employment in the textile industry, there would have beleandloom weaving ir
some of these housesThere was naregulation on the construction of thes

buildings.
[ 7 -_—ire "1_'; ey
£ ,l’ TP |
.},&Q‘ y A e N
P4 \Blackgrows o« Dairy Ho.
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Map 3 Altrincham in 1819 (Christopher
http://www.cheshirehistory.org.uk/archive/

Greenwool

% Don Bayliss (ed.), Altrincham: A History. (Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 93.
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4.2.21. In 1831 the population had grown by 60% in the previous 30 years to 2,708 and the
number of buildings also increased as shown in Maps 5, 6 and 7. Drainage was poor in the
Lower Town and there were regular outbreaks of typhoid and one of cholera in 1832. Th
NEO23ayAlAz2y GKFG Ad KFR a4 NLISR Ay (GKS L
consider setting up of a Local Board of Health, but it did not happen. In Altrincham the
20t AyadAddziAzy 2F GKS [/ 2dzNI [ SSd 62 N]J
maintain law and order, administration and public health. Government inspectors from
this period referred to the strong influence of the Stamford family on town affairs and
the weakness of the local governance. The importance of market gardening to tde loc
econctljsg"ly and to the rapidly expanding population of industrialising Manchester was
noted™.

21
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Map 4: Altrincham in 1831 (A. Bryant)ttp://www.cheshirehistory.org.uk/archive/
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Victorian Altrincham

4.2.22. The population of Altrincham had grown to 4,4881861 and by the end of the century
it had almost quadrupled to 16,831 in 1901. The character of the town changed
considerably during the centuryith a wider focus to include the streets to the east and
south of the Old Market Place. This was due to @héval of the railway to the lower part

% Don Bayliss, (ed.), Altrincham: A History. (Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 36.

6: Assessment of Conditio



Goose Green Conservation Area, Altrincham: Conservation Area AppraisalOctober2014

of the town in 1849, later combined into one station in 1881, with the building of
Stamford New Road. There walso theconstruction of new civic buildings to the south
and east of the Old Market Place, with Altham General Hospital and Provident
Dispensary in 1870; the new Markklibuse in1879; a Library and Technical School on
George Street an@ new Town Hall in 1901 on Market Street. The houses on George
Street were gradually converted into retail and busisaise, albeit with residential use
still above. Landmark bank buildings were built during this period and into the beginning
of the 20th century on the Old Market Place, Stamford New Road and Railway Street.

4.2.23. Due to the Turnpike roads, the proximity diet Bridgewater Canal and the healthier
raised location, Altrincham had already established itself as an early commuter town for
the wealthy and professional classes. This characteristic was significantly reinforced and
expanded to the hamlet of Bowdon fim¢r up the hill to the south, after an 1845 Act of
Parliament. This meanthat in 1849, the Manchester South Junction and Altrincham
Railway opened the branch line from Manchester to Altrincham Station at the foot of
what is now Stamford Street, extended the Bowdon Terminus at the foot of the Downs
in September of that ye&! A turntable was added in 1858. The Cheshire Midland
Railway from Altrincham to Knutsford was opened in 1862, extended by other companies
to Chester in 1872. This resulted in the dgichal development of Hale as a commuter
town.

4.2.24. Under the Public Health Act of 1848, which in turn was prompted by a major widespread
cholera epidemic in 1848, when a sufficient number of ratepayers (broadly 10%)
petitioned, there would be a public imgry into the sewerage, drainage, water supply,22
burial grounds, as well as the state of the streets. A preliminary report on the town—
centre by Isaac Turton led Altrincham to make such a request. His report censured the
housing in the New Street and ChaStteet area, as being of poor quality, high density
and with such overcrowding as to be unhealthy. Sir Robert Rawlinson attended and made
a subsequent report to the General Board of Health in 1851, noting the inadequacy of the
drinking water, sewerage ardtains and paving, as well as the polluted state of the rivers
YR GKS 0aSyoS 2F LldzofAO0 LINjJao ''a | Oz
empowered in 1851 to deal with highways and to improve the water supply and
sewerage. Progress, however wsl®w. The Board of Health provided the municipal
government, until it was superseded by the formation of the Altrincham Urban District
Council in 1895.

4.2.25. An extensive description of the soe@onomic structure and status of the area is
provided in Bayli€@8 & dzNBSes ' f ONAYOKIY AYy wmynwm Owm(
Altrincham in the Miehineteeth Century (2006), based upon extensive analysis of census,
tithe map and apportionment data, along with the 1852 Board of Health Plans and
associated data . TheoBrd of Health Plans in Trafford Local Studies, based upon a survey
in 1852, detail the land use, structures, materials and road surfaces of the town, on a
street by street basis.

40

“ Don Bayliss (ed), Altrincham: A History. (Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 43.
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The layout of the area continued to be greatly influenced by the Earboffstd. The 6th

Earl had died in 1845 and his grandson George Harry the 7th Earl, who came of age in
1848, started selling off agricultural land for housing and new streets in 1851, as
residential land values increased primarily due to the arrival of #ievay in Altrincham

in 1849.The deedcovenants specified the quality and type of materials and rental value.
The further away from the town centre and the higher up the hill to Bowdon, along with
the proximity to the Dunham Massey seat, the better thealiy and bigger the size of

the houses. He also specified that industrial development should take place north of the
Bridgewater Canal, which remained the case until the very end of the century. There was
also construction in the 1880s and 1890s of teecdiousing off Hale Road and off the
newly created Stamford Park on Hale Moss for lower middle and working classes, many
of whom worked in the growing industrial expansion of Broadheath. Towards the end of
the century more working class housing was depetbon the Linotype estaté

Brand new roads were laid out in the area and built upon, including New Street by 1851,
Lyme Grove by 1865, Oxford Road by 1876 and Delamere Road up to Bowdon by 1865. A
new section of Dunham Road was created to approach tlieMarket Place from the

south, avoiding the tight corner at High Street and Market Street. In 1880 Altrincham
Station and Bowdon Terminus were closed and replaced by a new station in 1881 (still in
use). Altrincham Station was demolished and Bowdon Stati@as converted into
carriage sheds. This also resulted in the creation of Stamford New Road, extending in a
straight line north from Railway Street at the bottom The Dolins

20" Century Altrincham 23
The population in the 20th century rose from 16,831 in 1901 to 39,789 in 1951 to 41,122
in 1961, which is the approximate population today. The residential, business and
industrial growth in the 19th century had been as a result of the development of the
railways and the availability of the canal, along with gas and electricity supplies,
combined with the availability of labour. Growth in the 20th century was spurred on by
the improved transport facilities with the introduction in turn of trams, motoriseha
transport, and later the reintroduction of the tram in 1992. Broadheath industrial estate
developed in the late 19th century, continued to thrive until the 1960s when around
10,000 people were employed by over 30 fiffns

In 1907 an electric tram sepgé from Manchester was extended to Altrincham, with the
Terminus at the bottom of the Downs on Railway Street. This was operated by
Manchester Corporation and the service also included post trams. The trams were
replaced by buses and an improved electdfiailway in 1931, with the tram lines being
removed or covered shortly afterwards along nearly all the réute

Altrincham town centre developments shifted the focus further away from the Old
Market Place around the twin hubs of the new railway statiord dhe 1879 Market

“2Don Bayliss (ed), Altrincham: A History. (Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 93
“3Don Bayliss (ed), Altrincham: A History. (Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 89.
4448 Don Bayliss (ed.), Altrincham: A History. (Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 120.
4> Don Bayliss, Altrincham: A History. (Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 84
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House during the first half of the 20th century, with the provision on George Street of
public facilities such as the extension of the library in 1928 and the adjacent art gallery in
1934, as well as the Stamford Public Hall and assemdinplex in 1936, extended in
1940. Other leisure facilities from this period included the public baths on Stamford New
Road (1901), the Altrincham Theatre opposite the station which showed films from 1913
to 1966, and the nearby Altrincham Hippodrome whiopened before the First World
War and finally closed in 1986. Both of these seated around 1,000 people. There were
two further cinemas in Altrincham in this period as well as the Garrick Playhouse to the
north of the town, which opened in 1932

Little changed until the 1960s, when the redevelopment of the town centre began with
the demolition of part of George and Grafton Streets and the construction of the Grafton
Centre, combining retail and commercial uses, and incorporating artsgloffice blak.
Following a report by the County Planning Officer, submitted in 1968, a policy for the
redevelopment of the town centre was implementethis involved the replacement of

the public baths by the new leisure centre east of the railway line. It alsdtedsn the
demolition of part of the area west of the station and its replacement by a new Library
and a pedestrianised shopping area and raised car park at the north end of George Street,
with Rackhams department store as the lead tenant, developed & ®evelopment
Company. The Stamford Hall and library complex was demolished as part of this
development. The area north of the station now contains several office blocks. The dense
19th century housing, churches and schools of Chapel Street, Albedt Sind lower

New Street, were demolished and blocks of social housing and a car park took their place.
The crowded housing of Newtown to the south of Lloyd Street was also demolished. 24
In 1974 the metropolitan borough of Trafford was formed, being partGotater
Manchester, merging a number of municipal boroughs including Altrincham which forms
the southern limit. In the 1980s derelict areas, such as the site of the old Bowdon
Terminus remained undeveloped as car parking, with a large supermarket beibhg bui
opposite, on the site of Newtown. Goose Green and Kings Court became small enclaves
for fashionable eateries and bars.

In the 21st century, further significant new development has taken place. This includes
the redevelopment of the site of the Bowddrerminus and the Denmark Street area site
into a combination of a cinema, fithess complex restaurants, apartment housing, a large
supermarket and car parking. Part of the redeveloped northern section of George Street
has been demolished and redevelopéaither with even larger units. A new public
square and Lower Market canopy at Central Way has been created in 2014 and the
Market House has become a food and drink destination with seating. On the east of
Railway Street, the new Altrincham hospital wél telocated in 2015.

Historic Development of Goose Green

The first piece of cartographic evidence of the area of Goose Green $&tdahdordEstate
map of 1799. This provides an overview of the state of Altrincham in the middle of the

“6 Don Bayliss (ed.), Altrincham: A History. (Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 79.
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Georgian period and allows some of the buildings stdhdingtoday to be identified.

The area of Goose Green was clearly occupied by cottages at this time. The upper and
middle classesccupiedlarger house<lustered in Higher Town, the area arourtOld
Market Place, Church Street and Market Street. The poorer families lived in Lower Town
in denser housingpcatedat George Street, Goose Green and the bottom of the Dotins

The 1835 tithe map (and schedwé apportionmentsdated 1838) showed tht the area
of Goose Green was still occupied by residential properties and the triangular
arrangementof Goose Green was in existence at that tifeee Map »

There wereproperties inthe same position as existing numbers3-5, 8a and 9Goose
Green A vacant plot was located tohe rear of3-5 GooseGreen whichis now occupied
by No. 2, Franks Restaurant. Tharere alsodwellings tothe northeast side ofsoose
Green in the approximate position of numive 1113.

Access to Goose Green at this time was a lane from the westwhich is still in situ
today and via a road from the southeast, the position of which has not cliange
providing access from Denmark Street. Titbe apportionments arerecorded to
contain between 13 houses and garden spac&ome of the properties were owned by
the Earl of Stamford, who had leased or sold the properties lease hold to others.

The Board of Health review generatedcarresponding mawhich dates to 1852 (see
Map 6). This shows that more cottages had been ezdchlong the east and west sides

of Goose Greeln the positions of numbers 7 and 8. Th&82map indicates that there 25
were four separatgroperties inthis space at that time, marked as numbers 14¥37. ———
These are all registered as houses in the Altram Survey Book of References. To the
northeast of the area number 1424, lying along a nesst southwest axis, was
described as a house witstable attached. By 1852 there had been an extension to
number 1422 and two small outbuildings erected irstarea. This area is later marked as
a smithy on the 1876 OS map. The land to the west side, to the rear of numBena®
also been further developed by 1852, with the addition of a smithy to the rear of number
7/8. To the southwest of the Smithy, mber 1400 is registered as a Bakehouse.

The railway lines are also visibde the 1852 Board of Health maps are associated
railway buildings for Bowdon Station and south of Goose Green was previously the site of
a railway siding. Theonstruction of the railway resulted in the isolatiof GooseGreen

from Pinfold Brow. The land to the south side of Goose Green remained undeveloped.

The18760rdnance surveynap ofCheshire showan alteration to the site to the rear of
numbers3-6 Goose Green(see Map7). There was formerly a courtyard with smithy to
the north, but the smithy building lthbeen demolished by 1872 and outbuildings
relating to numbers & were erected to the east sideNumber 2 (Frank&kestaurany
Goose Greewas eected to the west side of the area.

“"Don Bayliss. (ed.) Altrincham : A History(Timperley: Willow Publishing, 1992) 93,
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4.2.41. The area changed considerably again in 1880, the two stations of Altrincham and Bowdon
were closed and replaced by a new station in 1881 (still in use). This also resulted in the
creation of Stamford New Road, extand in a straight line north from Railway Street at
junction with TheDowns. This further isolated Goose Gredivorcingit from George
Street.

4.2.42. The east side ooose Green waaltered withthe additionof Back Grafton StreetBy
1897, the industrialcomplex to the northeast had been demolished and three terraced
structures in the locations of curremumbers11-13 Goose Greemere erected. One can
assumetherefore that numbers 1113 Goose Greerwere erected between 1876 and
1897 (see MagB), and wheher there are any remnants of any structures relating to
smithy is currently unclear Furthemore dwellings inthe location of numbers 840
Goose Greerappear to have taken their present plan form between 1876 and 1897,
again possibly due ttormation of Back Grafton Street.

4.2.43. Other changes t&oose Greethe area during the late 19th century include the erection
of two rectangularbuildings tothe north of numbers 143 Goose Green The original
use oftheseproperties isunknown, but theventilatorsin the roof of the building to the
north appearto indicate an industrial use.

4.2.44. Between 1908 and 1937 there were a couple of minor additions to the. &eé of the
property tothe west of 8@ ¢ A G KAY (KS Clagredrs/tS Nddehieen! NI &
remowed at this timeand anotherbuilding erected tothe north of numbers 1113 (see
Maps 9and 10) Goose Green Photograph 1 shows some of the buildings the west 2g
sidebefore mid- 20th century alterationdo doors and windows. —

Photograph 1:Goose Greein 1944 (Trafford LifetimesTL 5909

4.2.45. In the 1960s a scheme damprovement wasundertaken across Altrinchamand this
resulted in the alteration of a number of buildings GooseGreen. The aim was to turn
the area into a quiet backwater with smaller baque shops.
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4.2.46. Post 1965 numbers 10a and 1la were erected, filling in the small existing gap sites.
Numbers 1519 were also erected, and the former alleyway to the rear of number 3 was
in filled, (see Maps 1 and 12.

= 4 _ﬁ.'_ Okt \ 4 “
Photograph 2:2Number 68 GooseGreen(Trafford LifetimesTL793%
Sequenceof mapsindicating developmentof Goose Green

Ji 7
Goose Green Sequential Development of Area /A“'\\ —
Sonsscrtion/Ares | Existing CA Boundary / N 27

o7 / \ |:l Amended Boundary 2014

Map 5: 1835 Tithe Mapndicating approximate location of current Conservation Area boundary
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Map 6: 1852 Altrincham Board of Healtimdicating approximate location of current Conservation Area boundary
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